## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Martinez, California

### MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### **CONTENTS**

INI	DEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
FIN	NANCIAL SECTION:	
	BALANCE SHEETS	3
	STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE	4
	NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	5
то	THER REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS:	
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	Ω



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Governing Board and Measure A Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity included in the General Obligation Bond Construction Fund (the "Bond Fund") of the District as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's Bond Fund financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Measure A General Obligation Bonds activity of Contra Costa Community College District, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Bond Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the District as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in financial position for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated July 1, 2022 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters for the Bond Fund. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance for the Bond Fund. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Contra Costa Community College District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance for the Bond Fund.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS BALANCE SHEETS June 30, 2021 and 2020

	<u>2021</u>	<u>2020</u>
ASSETS Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) Interest receivable Due from other funds (Note 3)	\$ - 2,660 -	\$ 16,134,877 23,377 256,530
Total assets	\$ 2,660	<u>\$ 16,414,784</u>
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities:     Accounts payable and accrued expenses     Due to other funds	\$ - 2,660	\$ 1,612,222 
Total liabilities	2,660	1,612,222
Fund balance: Restricted – capital projects	<del>-</del>	14,802,562
Total liabilities and fund balances	<u>\$ 2,660</u>	<u>\$ 16,414,784</u>

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

	<u>2021</u>		2020
Revenues Interest income	\$ 36,735	<u>\$</u>	<u>351,906</u>
Expenditures Current: Classified salaries Employee benefits Services and other expenditures	98,763 42,742 156,036		96,270 45,021 151,023
Capital outlay  Total expenditures	 14,541,756 14,839,297		10,423,738 10,716,052
Change in fund balance			(10,364,146)
Fund balance, beginning of year	 14,802,562		25,166,708
Fund balance, end of year	\$ 	\$	14,802,562

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments and to general practices within California community colleges. The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with policies and procedures of the State Chancellor Office's *California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual*. The activities of the 2006 Measure A Bonds are recorded along with other activities in the District's 2006 Measure A Building Fund. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

<u>Financial Reporting Entity</u>: The financial statements include only the 2006 Measure A Building Fund of the District. This Fund was established to account for the expenditures of general obligation bonds issued under the General Obligation Bonds Election of 2006. The authorized issuance amount of the bonds is \$286,500,000. These financial statements are not intended to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

<u>Basis of Accounting</u>: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The financial statements represent the 2006 Measure A Building Fund of the District and are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u>: For the purpose of financial statements, cash equivalents are defined as financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less. Funds invested in the Contra Costa County Treasury are considered cash equivalents.

Nonspendable Fund Balance: Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in spendable form, such as prepaid expenditures.

Restricted Fund Balance: Restricted fund balance includes resources which are legally or contractually restricted by external third parties. Fund balance is restricted for capital projects of the 2006 Measure A Building Fund in accordance with the Bond Project List for 2006 Measure A General Obligation Bonds.

<u>Accounting Estimates</u>: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

<u>Encumbrances</u>: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid.

(Continued)

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2020 consisted of \$16,134,877 respectively, held in the County Treasury investment pool. There were no cash and cash equivalent balances at June 30, 2021.

<u>Credit Risk:</u> In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the 2006 Measure A Building Fund maintains substantially all of its cash in the Contra Costa County Treasury. The County Treasurer of Contra Costa County acts as the Measure A General Obligation Bond Fiscal Agent. The County pools these funds with those of other districts in the County and invests the cash. The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasury, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

Because the Bond Fund's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund under the care of a third party and the Bond Fund's share of the pooled investment fund does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities owned by the District, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or related custodial credit risk classifications is required.

In accordance with applicable State laws, the Contra Costa County Treasurer may invest in derivative securities. However, at June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Contra Costa County Treasurer has represented that the Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk profiles.

<u>Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements</u>: Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

	Maximum	Maximum Percentage	Maximum Investment in
Authorized Investment Type	<u>Maturity</u>	Allowed	One Issuer
County Pooled Investment Fund	None	None	None

<u>Interest Rate Risk</u>: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

<u>Concentration of Credit Risk</u>: The District's investment policy places limits on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District had no concentration of credit risk.

#### **NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS**

As of June 30, 2021, the Bond Fund – 2006 Measure A had an amount of \$2,660 due to Measure E Bond Fund of the District. As of June 30, 2020, the Bond Fund - 2006 Measure A had an amount \$256,530 due from the General Fund of the District.

(Continued)

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### NOTE 4 - PURPOSE OF BOND ISSUANCE

<u>Bond Authorization</u>: By approval of the proposition for Measure A by at least 55% of the registered voters voting on the proposition at an election held on June 6, 2006 Contra Costa Community College District was authorized to issue and sell bonds of up to \$286,500,000 in aggregate principal amount. The District received affirmative votes from 57% of voters, which exceeded the 55% requirement.

#### Purpose of Bonds

The proceeds of the Bonds may be used:

"To renovate aging college facilities (making energy savings, safety, and handicapped accessibility improvements), and update facilities used by transfer, career and vocational students (for math, science, nursing, technology and other programs) at Contra Costa College, Diablo Valley College, Los Medanos College, the San Ramon Valley and Brentwood centers, shall the Contra Costa Community College District issue \$286,500,000 of bonds at legal interest rates with annual audits and a citizens' oversight committee to monitor spending"

As required by the California Constitution, the proceeds from the sale of bonds will be used only for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator salaries and other school operating expenses. Classified salaries and employee benefits do not include teacher and administrator salaries.

#### **NOTE 5 – GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ISSUANCES**

The bonds are general obligations of the District. The Boards of Supervisor of Contra Costa County are obligated to levy *ad valorem* taxes for the payment, without limitation as to amount, upon all property within their respective counties subject to taxation by the District (except certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

In August 2007, the District issued \$73,000,000. In March 2010, the District issued an additional \$73,000,000. In August 2013, the District issued the final \$140,500,000 of bonds under Measure A.

#### **NOTE 6 - COMMITMENTS**

At June 30, 2020, the District had \$12,363,513 in outstanding commitments on construction contracts. At June 30, 2021, there were no remaining outstanding commitments related to the Measure A bonds.



# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Governing Board and Measure A Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") Measure A General Obligation Bonds (the "Bond Fund") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's Measure A General Obligation Bonds financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 1, 2022. Our report included an emphasis of matter stating that the financial statements present only the District's Bond Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended. Our opinion was not modified with respect to this matter.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over Bond Fund financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting for the Bond Fund.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's Bond Fund financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Bond Fund's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance for the Bond Fund. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance for the Bond Fund. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Crowe LD

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PERFORMANCE AUDIT

June 30, 2021

## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Martinez, California

#### MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PERFORMANCE AUDIT June 30, 2021

#### **CONTENTS**

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
BACKGROUND:	
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY	2
MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS	2
PERFORMANCE AUDIT:	
OBJECTIVES	3
SCOPE	3
METHODOLOGY	3
CONCLUSION	3



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Governing Board and Measure A Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

We have conducted a performance audit of the Contra Costa Community College District (the "District"), Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion based on our audit objectives. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for the findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed on page 3 of this report which includes determining the compliance with the performance requirements for the Proposition 39 Measure A General Obligation Bonds under the applicable provisions of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution and Proposition 39 as they apply to the bonds and the net proceeds thereof. Management is responsible for Contra Costa Community College District's compliance with those requirements.

Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the internal controls of Contra Costa Community College District to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate for the purpose of providing a conclusion on the District's compliance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express any assurance on the internal control.

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Contra Costa Community College District expended Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees and approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS BACKGROUND INFORMATION

#### **LEGISLATIVE HISTORY**

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and Financial Accountability Act. Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for the issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, "for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities", upon approval by 55% of the electorate.

Education Code Section 15278 provides additional accountability measures:

- 1. A requirement that the school district establishes and appoints members to an independent citizens' oversight committee.
- 2. A requirement that the school district expend bond funds only for the purposes described in Section 1(b)(3) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, and ensuring that no funds are used for any teacher or administrative salaries or other school operating expenses.
- 3. A requirement to conduct an annual independent performance audit required by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.
- 4. A requirement to conduct an annual independent financial audit required by Section 1(b)(3)D of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The Contra Costa Community College District, and Contra Costa County, California Election of 2006 General Obligation Bonds, Measure A were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the Contra Costa Community College District held on June 6, 2006 at which more than 55% of the persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of \$286,500,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds of the District. The Bonds are being issued to finance the construction, rehabilitation and modernization of certain District property and facilities. The Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable solely from ad valorem property taxes. A summary of the text of the ballot language was as follows:

"To renovate aging college facilities (making energy savings, safety, and handicapped accessibility improvements), and update facilities used by transfer, career and vocational students (for math, science, nursing, technology and other programs) at Contra Costa College, Diablo Valley College, Los Medanos College, the San Ramon Valley and Brentwood centers, shall the Contra Costa Community College District issue \$286,500,000 of bonds at legal interest rates with annual audits and a citizens' oversight committee to monitor spending"

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE A GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, METHODOLOGY AND CONCLUSION

#### **OBJECTIVES**

The objective of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the purposes approved by the voters and only on the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.

#### **SCOPE**

The District provided to us a list of all Measure A General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021 (the "List"). A total of \$14,839,297 in expenditures from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 were identified.

#### **METHODOLOGY**

We performed the following procedures to the List of Measure A General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021:

- Interviewed District management related to controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Obtained District procedures and controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Performed tests of District controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Verified the mathematical accuracy of the expenditures List.
- Reconciled the List to total bond expenditures as reported by the District in the District's audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, presented as the Bond Construction Fund (Fund 43).
- Examined a sample of the salaries and related benefits, which totaled \$29,725. We also selected a sample of 25 non-payroll expenditures totaling \$10,794,176 from Measure A. The sample was selected to provide a representation across specific construction projects, vendors and expenditure amounts. Verified that funds from the Measure A Building Fund of the District were generally expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing and equipping of District facilities constituting authorized bond projects.

#### CONCLUSION

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Contra Costa Community College District expended Measure A General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees and approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.

## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020

### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Martinez, California

#### MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
FINANCIAL SECTION:	
BALANCE SHEETS	3
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE	4
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	5
OTHER REPORTS OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS:	
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	8



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Governing Board and Measure E Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

#### **Report on the Financial Statements**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") Measure E General Obligation Bonds activity included in the General Obligation Bond Construction Fund (the "Bond Fund") of the District as of and for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's Bond Fund financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Measure E General Obligation Bonds activity of Contra Costa Community College District, as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Bond Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the District as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in financial position for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated July 1, 2022 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters for the Bond Fund. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance for the Bond Fund. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering Contra Costa Community College District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance for the Bond Fund.

Crowe LLP

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS BALANCE SHEETS June 30, 2021 and 2020

		<u>2021</u>	2020
ASSETS Restricted cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) Restricted investments (Note 2) Interest receivable Due from other funds (Note 3) Prepaid expense	\$	6,599,877 55,097,012 61,986 22,021 1,623,786	\$ 58,434,630 - 81,483 - -
Total assets	<u>\$</u>	63,404,682	\$ 58,516,113
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE Liabilities:    Accounts payable and accrued expenses    Due to other funds (Note 3)    Total liabilities		10,034,998	\$ 13,351,567 140,504 13,492,071
Fund balance: Nonspendable Restricted – capital projects  Total fund balance		1,623,786 51,745,898 53,369,684	 45,024,042 45,024,042
Total liabilities and fund balance	\$	63,404,682	\$ 58,516,113

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

		<u>2021</u>		2020
Revenues: Interest/dividends income Realized gains, net	\$	336,355 	\$	1,252,939 65,856
Total revenue		336,355		1,318,795
Expenditures:     Current:     Classified salaries     Employee benefits     Services and operating expenditures Capital outlay Other outgo		798,142 367,835 4,383,919 95,992,788 448,029	_	748,953 355,449 4,244,654 80,632,940 162,593
Total expenditures		101,990,713		86,144,589
Deficiencies of revenue under expenditures		(101,654,358)		(84,825,795)
Other financing sources Bond proceeds Change in fund balance		110,000,000 8,345,642		110,000,000 25,174,206
Fund balance, beginning of year		45,024,042		19,849,836
Fund balance, end of year		53,369,684	\$	45,024,042

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments and to general practices within California community colleges. The District accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with policies and procedures of the State Chancellor Office's *California Community Colleges Budget and Accounting Manual.* The activities of the Measure E Bonds are recorded along with other activities in the District's 2014 Measure E Building Fund. The accounting policies of the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies:

<u>Financial Reporting Entity</u>: The financial statements include only the 2014 Measure E Building Fund (the "Bond Fund") of the District. This Fund was established to account for the expenditures of general obligation bonds issued under the General Obligation Bonds Election of 2014. The authorized issuance amount of the bonds is \$450,000,000. These financial statements are not intended to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District in compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

<u>Basis of Accounting</u>: Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.

The financial statements represent the 2014 Measure E Building Fund of the District and are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. "Available" means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u>: For the purpose of financial statements, cash equivalents are defined as financial instruments with an original maturity of three months or less. Funds invested in the Contra Costa County Treasury are considered cash equivalents.

<u>Nonspendable Fund Balance</u>: Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in spendable form, such as prepaid expenditures.

Restricted Fund Balance: Restricted fund balance includes resources which are legally or contractually restricted by external third parties. Fund balance is restricted for capital projects of the Building Fund - 2014 Measure E in accordance with the Bond Project List for 2014 Measure E General Obligation Bonds.

<u>Accounting Estimates</u>: The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

<u>Encumbrances</u>: Encumbrance accounting is used in all budgeted funds to reserve portions of applicable appropriations for which commitments have been made. Encumbrances are recorded for purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments when they are written. Encumbrances are liquidated when the commitments are paid.

(Continued)

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### NOTE 2 - RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2021 and 2020 consisted of \$6,599,877 and \$58,434,630, respectively, held in the County Treasury investment pool. Restricted investments consisted of \$55,097,012 at June 30, 2021, invested in the State Investment Pool. There were no restricted investments at June 30, 2020.

<u>Credit Risk</u>: In accordance with Education Code Section 41001, the 2014 Measure E Building Fund maintains substantially all of its cash in the Contra Costa County Treasury. The County Treasurer of Contra Costa County acts as the Measure E General Obligation Bond Fiscal Agent. The County pools these funds with those of other districts in the County and invests the cash. The District is considered to be an involuntary participant in an external investment pool. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in the financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasury, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

Because the Bond Fund's deposits are maintained in a recognized pooled investment fund under the care of a third party and the Bond Fund's share of the pooled investment fund does not consist of specific, identifiable investment securities owned by the District, no disclosure of the individual deposits and investments or related custodial credit risk classifications is required.

In accordance with applicable State laws, the Contra Costa County Treasurer may invest in derivative securities. However, at June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Contra Costa County Treasurer has represented that the Treasurer's pooled investment fund contained no derivatives or other investments with similar risk profiles.

Investment in the State Investment Pool: The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the California government code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the District's investment in the pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which is recorded on the amortized cost basis.

<u>Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements</u>: Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District's investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustees. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

		Maximum	Maximum
	Maximum	Percentage	Investment in
Authorized Investment Type	<u>Maturity</u>	Allowed	One Issuer
County Pooled Investment Fund	None	None	None

<u>Interest Rate Risk</u>: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

(Continued)

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2021 and 2020

#### **NOTE 3 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS**

As of June 30, 2021, the Bond Fund – 2014 Measure E had amounts totalling \$22,021 due from other funds of the District. As of June 30, 2020, the Bond Fund - 2014 Measure E had amounts totalling \$140,504 due to other funds of the District.

#### NOTE 4 - PURPOSE OF BOND ISSUANCE

<u>Bond Authorization</u>: By approval of the proposition for Measure E by at least 55% of the registered voters voting on the proposition at an election held on June 3, 2014, Contra Costa Community College District was authorized to issue and sell bonds of up to \$450,000,000 in aggregate principal amount. The District received affirmative votes from 57.58% of voters, which exceeded the 55% requirement.

#### Purpose of Bonds

The proceeds of the Bonds may be used:

"To upgrade educational facilities at Diablo Valley, Contra Costa, and Los Medanos Colleges, and the San Ramon and Brentwood centers, and help prepare students for jobs and college transfer by modernizing classrooms and labs, building facilities for health, medical, science, and technology training, and implementing earthquake safety, accessibility, and infrastructure improvements, shall the Contra Costa Community College District issue \$450 million of bonds at legal interest rates with independent oversight, audits, and all funds spent on local sites?"

As required by the California Constitution, the proceeds from the sale of bonds will be used only for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities and not for any other purpose, including teacher and administrator salaries and other school operating expenses. Classified salaries and employee benefits do not include teacher and administrator salaries.

#### **NOTE 5 – GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ISSUANCES**

The bonds are general obligations of the District. The Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County are obligated to levy *ad valorem* taxes for the payment, without limitation as to amount, upon all property within their respective counties subject to taxation by the District (except certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates) for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

In August 2014 the District issued Measure E General Obligation Bonds totaling \$120,000,000. In September 2019, the District issued \$110,000,000 of bonds under Measure E. In November 2020, the District issued \$110,000,000 of bonds under Measure E.

#### **NOTE 6 – COMMITMENTS**

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the District had \$50,284,800 and \$133,809,332, respectively, in outstanding commitments on construction contracts.



# INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Governing Board and Measure E Citizens' Bond Oversight Committee Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Contra Costa Community College District (the "District") Measure E General Obligation Bonds (the "Bond Fund") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's Measure E General Obligation Bonds financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 1, 2022. Our report included an emphasis of matter stating that the financial statements present only the District's Bond Fund and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the District, as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its financial position for the year then ended. Our opinion was not modified with respect to this matter.

#### **Internal Control Over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over Bond Fund financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting for the Bond Fund.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's Bond Fund financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Bond Fund's compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

#### **Purpose of this Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance for the Bond Fund. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance for the Bond Fund. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Crowe LLP

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

## MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PERFORMANCE AUDIT

June 30, 2021

## CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT Martinez, California

#### MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS PERFORMANCE AUDIT June 30, 2021

#### **CONTENTS**

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	1
BACKGROUND:	
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY	2
MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS	2
PERFORMANCE AUDIT:	
OBJECTIVES	3
SCOPE	3
METHODOLOGY	3
CONCLUSION	વ



#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Governing Board and Measure E Citizens' **Bond Oversight Committee** Contra Costa Community College District Martinez, California

We have conducted a performance audit of the Contra Costa Community College District (the "District"), Measure E General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021.

We conducted our performance audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion based on our audit objectives. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for the findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.

Our audit was limited to the objectives listed on page 3 of this report which includes determining the compliance with the performance requirements for the Proposition 39 Measure E General Obligation Bonds under the applicable provisions of Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution and Proposition 39 as they apply to the bonds and the net proceeds thereof. Management is responsible for Contra Costa Community College District's compliance with those requirements.

Solely to assist us in planning and performing our performance audit, we obtained an understanding of the internal controls of Contra Costa Community College District to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate for the purpose of providing a conclusion on the District's compliance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control. Accordingly, we do not express any assurance on the internal control.

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Contra Costa Community College District expended Measure E General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees and approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.

Crowe LLP

Sacramento, California July 1, 2022

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS BACKGROUND INFORMATION

#### **LEGISLATIVE HISTORY**

On November 7, 2000, California voters approved Proposition 39, the Smaller Classes, Safer Schools and Financial Accountability Act. Proposition 39 amended portions of the California Constitution to provide for the issuance of general obligation bonds by school districts, "for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or replacement of school facilities, including the furnishing and equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities", upon approval by 55% of the electorate.

Education Code Section 15278 provides additional accountability measures:

- 1. A requirement that the school district establishes and appoints members to an independent citizens' oversight committee.
- 2. A requirement that the school district expend bond funds only for the purposes described in Section 1(b)(3) of Article XIII A of the California Constitution, and ensuring that no funds are used for any teacher or administrative salaries or other school operating expenses.
- 3. A requirement to conduct an annual independent performance audit required by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.
- 4. A requirement to conduct an annual independent financial audit required by Section 1(b)(3)D of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT, MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The Contra Costa Community College District, and Contra Costa County, California Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Measure E were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the Contra Costa Community College District held on June 3, 2014 at which more than 55% of the persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of \$450,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds of the District. The Bonds are being issued to finance the construction, rehabilitation and modernization of certain District property and facilities. The Bonds are general obligations of the District, payable solely from ad valorem property taxes. A summary of the text of the ballot language was as follows:

"To upgrade educational facilities at Diablo Valley, Contra Costa, and Los Medanos Colleges, and the San Ramon and Brentwood centers, and help prepare students for jobs and college transfer by modernizing classrooms and labs, building facilities for health, medical, science, and technology training, and implementing earthquake safety, accessibility, and infrastructure improvements, shall the Contra Costa Community College District issue \$450 million of bonds at legal interest rates with independent oversight, audits, and all funds spent on local sites?"

#### CONTRA COSTA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT MEASURE E GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, METHODOLOGY AND CONCLUSION

#### **OBJECTIVES**

The objective of our performance audit was to determine that the District expended Measure E General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the purposes approved by the voters and only on the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)C of Article XIII A of the California Constitution.

#### **SCOPE**

The District provided to us a list of all Measure E General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021 (the "List"). A total of \$101,990,713 in expenditures from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 were identified.

#### **METHODOLOGY**

We performed the following procedures to the List of Measure E General Obligation Bond project expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2021:

- Interviewed District management related to controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Obtained District procedures and controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Performed tests of District controls over planning, bidding, contracting, expenditure of bond funds and financial reporting.
- Verified the mathematical accuracy of the expenditures List.
- Reconciled the List to total bond expenditures as reported by the District in the District's audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, presented as Bond Construction Fund (Fund 44).
- Examined a sample of the salaries and related benefits, which totaled \$249,031. We also selected a sample of 37 non-payroll expenditures totaling \$69,460,361 from Measure E. The sample was selected to provide a representation across specific construction projects, vendors and expenditure amounts. Verified that funds from the Measure E Building Fund of the District were generally expended for the construction, renovation, furnishing and equipping of District facilities constituting authorized bond projects.

#### CONCLUSION

The results of our tests indicated that, in all significant respects, Contra Costa Community College District expended Measure E General Obligation Bond funds for the year ended June 30, 2021 only for the specific projects developed by the District's Board of Trustees and approved by the voters, in accordance with the requirements of Proposition 39, as specified by Section 1(b)(3)(C) of Article XIIIA of the California Constitution.